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MIRACOSTA COLLEGE FOUNDATION BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING  

Tuesday, August 15, 2023 3:00-5:00 p.m. 

1 Barnard Dr, Oceanside, CA 92056 
Conference Room OCT200 

Members of the community not able to attend in person can access the live stream here: 
https://linktr.ee/miracostacollegefoundation  

Board of Directors Members:    
Alec Babiarz, Bruce Bandemer, Hema Crockett, Jimmy Figueroa, Janice Kurth, Hap L’Heureux, David McGuigan, 

Cindy Musser, Karen Pearson, Val Saadat, Sudershan Shaunak, Tim Snodgrass, Denise Stillinger, 
Kimberly Troutman, Sharon Wiback 

Emeritus Board Members: 
Martha Gresham, Knox Williams, Gary Wrench 

Guests/Advisors:   
 Raye Clendening, Sunita Cooke, Timothy Flood, Omar Jimenez, Bianca Rosales, Leila Safaralian 

Staff Support:   
Tori Fishinger, Kristen Huyck, Elizabeth Lurenana, Shannon Stubblefield 

AGENDA 

MiraCosta College Foundation Mission:  
Promote the benefits of MiraCosta College and secure resources that transform lives. 

MiraCosta College Foundation Vision: 
Educational opportunities for all. 

Land Acknowledgement:  
We acknowledge the original caretakers of the land on which MiraCosta College is built.  

The Luiseno people are made up of seven bands: the La Jolla, Pala, Pauma, Pechanga, Rincon, San Luis Rey, 
and Soboba. We pay our respects to the Luiseno – past, present, and emerging, and are grateful to have  

the opportunity to be part of this community and to honor their history, culture, and spirit.  

I. CALL TO ORDER
This meeting will be live-streamed and recorded.

II. ROLL CALL, WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS

III. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS ON AND NOT ON THE AGENDA

IV. CHANGES IN AGENDA ORDER

V. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES (5 minutes) – Action Required
A. Regular Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2023

VI. PRESENTATION(S) (20 minutes) (Saadat)
A. Innovation Grants Recipient Presentations

i. Chair Saadat to introduce David Parker, Christian Saunders, & Thao Ha

2023.08.15 MCC Foundation Board Meeting Agenda Packet Page 1 of 76

https://linktr.ee/miracostacollegefoundation


2023.8.15 MiraCosta College Foundation Quarterly Board Meeting Agenda Page. 2 of 3 

VII. COMMITTEE, AD HOC AND TASK FORCE REPORTS (50 minutes)
A. Executive Committee (McGuigan)

i. Consent Agenda – Action Required
ii. Board Volunteer Opportunity

a. Oceanside Campus Food Distribution 9/12 @12:30pm
iii. Individual Meetings with Dave & Shannon

B. Finance Committee (Bandemer)
i. Review & Approve FY22/23 Q4 Financial Statements – Action Required

ii. Review & Approve FY22/23 Q4 Recap with Recommendations from Accounting
Department – Action Required

iii. Review and Approve Proposed Unrestricted Endowed Fund Distributions for FY23-24 -
Action Required

iv. Review & Approve Update to Investment and Spending Policy – Action Required
C. Governance & Nominations Committee (Stillinger)

i. Roles and Responsibilities of Board Members – Action Required
ii. Board Prospects

D. Comprehensive Campaign Ad hoc Committee (McGuigan)
i. Progress Updates
ii. Top 3 Fundraising Needs

A. The MiraCosta Resilience Fund
https://www.sandiegogives.org/organization/Mira-Costa-College-
Foundation  

B. Endowment Matching Gift Campaign
C. Chemistry Biotech Building Naming Opportunity

E. Innovation Grants and Scholarships Ad hoc Committee (Saadat)
F. Audit Committee (Musser)

i. Review & Approve FY 21-22 Audit – Action Required

VIII. COLLEGE UPDATES (30 minutes)
A. Office of the Superintendent/President – Superintendent/President Cooke
B. Administrative Services – Tim Flood
C. Board of Trustees – Trustee Clendening
D. Classified Senate – Omar Jimenez
E. MM Bond Oversight – Foundation Board Representative Babiarz
F. Institutional Advancement – Vice President of Institutional Advancement Stubblefield

i. FY 23/24 Events Calendar

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND MEETING AND EVENT CALENDAR REVIEW (10 minutes)

Next Comprehensive Campaign Committee Meeting (Zoom) 
Tuesday, August 29, 2023 at 1:00 – 2:00 p.m.  

Next Governance and Nominations Meeting (San Elijo Campus) 
Tuesday, October 24, 2023 at 2:00 – 3:00 p.m. 

Next Finance Committee Meeting (San Elijo Campus)  
Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 1:00 – 2:30 p.m. 

Next Executive Committee Meeting (San Elijo Campus) 
Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 3:00 – 4:00 p.m. 

Next Foundation Board Meeting (San Elijo Campus) 
Tuesday, November 14, 2023 at 3:00 – 5:00 p.m. 

X. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

XI. ADJOURNMENT
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*  ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: Members of the audience may address the Foundation Board on any item listed on the agenda when that agenda item 
comes up for discussion and/or action. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per agenda item and a total of fifteen (15) minutes of public 
comment on an item, unless waived by the board. Non-English speakers utilizing a translator will have six (6) minutes to directly address the board. 

 
 ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: Members of the audience may address the Foundation Board on any topic not on the agenda so long as the topic 

is within the jurisdiction of the Foundation. Under the Brown Act, the board is not permitted to engage in public discussion or take any action on an 
agenda item not on the agenda, except that members of the board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by persons 
exercising their public testimony rights under Government Code §54954.3. In addition, on their own initiative, or in response to questions posed by 
the public, a member of the board may ask a question for clarification. A member of the board or the board itself may provide a reference to staff or 
other resources for factual information, request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter or take action to 
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. Comments from visitors shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless the board waives 
the time limit. Non-English speakers utilizing a translator will have six (6) minutes to directly address the board. The board may also limit the total 
amount of time for public comment on a particular topic to fifteen (15) minutes.  

 
 DECORUM:  Decorum requires members of the public to observe order at board meetings. Speakers shall speak to the issues, and refrain from 

using defamatory or abusive personal remarks that disturb or impede the meeting or exceed the bounds of civility necessary to the conduct of the 
business of the Foundation Board. The presiding officer has the authority to run the meeting, which includes the authority to issue warnings, call for 
recesses, or clearing the boardroom in the event of disruptive behavior. Government Code section 54954.3(c) establishes that the legislative body 
of a local agency shall not prohibit public criticism of the policies, procedures, programs, or services of the agency, or of the acts or omissions of 
the legislative body, and California Penal Code section 403 makes it a misdemeanor for any person to willfully disturb or break up any lawfully 
authorized assembly or meeting.  

 
 

 

 

Foundation Board meetings are held in meeting rooms that are accessible to those with mobility disabilities. If you wish to attend the 
meeting and you have another disability requiring special accommodation, please notify the board assistant, 
foundation@miracosta.edu.  
 

In compliance with Government Code §54957.5, nonexempt writings that are distributed to a majority or all of the MiraCosta 
Community College District Foundation Board in advance of their meetings may be viewed at the Office of Institutional Advancement, 1 
Barnard Drive, Oceanside, California, 92056 or by clicking on the Foundation website at  http://foundation.miracosta.edu/agendas. 
Such writings will also be available at the board meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the 
agenda, please contact the board assistant by e-mail at foundation@miracosta.edu. 
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MIRACOSTA COLLEGE FOUNDATION BOARD  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING         May 16, 2023 

DRAFT 
 

Foundation Board members and guests answered three questions on sticky notes as an activity prior to 
the meeting being called to order.  

 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

The MiraCosta Community College Foundation Board of Directors met in open session on Tuesday, 
May 16, 2023, in Conference Room 1131 on the MiraCosta College District’s San Elijo Campus (3333 
Manchester Avenue, Cardiff, CA 92007). President Dave McGuigan called the meeting to order at 3:13 
p.m. Members of the public were also able to participate via Zoom where the meeting was recorded. 
 

II. ROLL CALL, WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS  
Board Members Present:  
Matthew Adams  Alec Babiarz    Bruce Bandemer    
Hema Crockett  Janice Kurth    Dave McGuigan  
Cindy Musser   Karen Pearson   Val Saadat    
Denise Stillinger  Kimberly Troutman (@4:00p.m.)  Sharon Wiback (@3:40 p.m.) 

 
Board Members Absent:  
Eva Budnik   Jimmy Figueroa   Hap L’Heureux 
Sudershan Shaunak 
 
Guests/Advisors/Staff Present: 
Brian Astredo, Development Officer, MiraCosta College 
Monserrate Ayala, President, MiraCosta College Associated Student Government 
Carl Banks, President, MiraCosta College Classified Senate 
Devon Boone, Director/Manager of Campus Assessment, Resources, & Education, MiraCosta College 
Raye Clendening, Trustee, MiraCosta College Board of Trustees 
Dr. Sunita V. Cooke (Zoom), President/Superintendent, MiraCosta Community College District 
Mitra De Souza, Director of Student Services, MiraCosta College Community Learning Center 
Tori Fishinger, Associate Director of Institutional Advancement, MiraCosta College   
Dr. Kristen Huyck, Director of Public & Governmental Relations, Marketing & Communications,  
                        MiraCosta College 
Elizabeth Lurenana, Administrative Assistant to Foundation/Development, MiraCosta College 
Nick Mortaloni, Dean of Student Affairs, MiraCosta College 
Shannon Stubblefield, Vice President of Institutional Advancement/Executive Director of the Foundation 
 
A. Guests and staff introduced themselves to the board of directors.  
 

III. CHANGES IN AGENDA ORDER 
A. Item “XV. Team Building” was removed from the agenda.  

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS ON AND NOT ON THE AGENDA 

None 
 

V. MIRACOSTA COLLEGE STUDENTS AND NEEDS  
A. President McGuigan gave a presentation on basic statistics surrounding MiraCosta College and 

the foundation, as well as his goals for FY23/24. The full presentation is attached to these 
minutes.  

i. Feedback from board members was requested and given on the following items:  
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1. Missing Value Propositions: small class sizes (max of 35 students), wrap around 
service, a community that cares for the whole person, state of the art facilities, #3 
should be split into two separate items, huge transfer success beyond UCs.  

2. Further District Data to include: African American group missing from 
demographics (wasn’t in the MiraCosta report we pulled from). 

3. Further District Data desired by the board (data sources not identified): number 
of businesses in the district, number of foundations in the district (family and 
community), and number of veterans in the district. 

4. PIO is finalizing an economic impact report that will be shared with the board 
when released.  

5. Staff will continue to provide board members with individual stories to augment 
impressive statistics. Many of these can be found on the website and in both the 
Annual Report and Transforming Lives publications.  

 
VI. STUDENT SERVICES PANEL  

A. Devon Boone, Mitra De Souza, and Nick Mortaloni from the Student Services team gave a 
presentation (provided in the minutes) regarding student needs and the impact of funding from 
the foundation. They shared the history of the Campus Assessment, Resources and Education 
(CARE) Program as well as both statistical data and individual impact stories.  

i. The panel emphasized the need for raising flexible funds and the huge impact this aid 
has on student persistence rates. The CARE Program is funded by a grant from the 
state, which covers the cost of food distribution. Additional funding is needed for student 
support outside of food and groceries. President/Superintendent Cooke explained there 
is a 50% law for district funds that penalizes the district when money is spent on 
anything other than classroom instruction, which includes this program.  

ii. Board members recalled the success of the 2020 emergency fund kits for specific needs 
in the $500-1000 range, and discussed an updated, more flexible, version for 2023/24 to 
share with prospects.  

iii. Vice President/Executive Director Stubblefield shared that all programs on campus are 
being encouraged to share their specific giving page links on their district website pages, 
so donors can easily give to what they are passionate about. This will allow the 
foundation website to focus on a few key flexible funds. The foundation website is 
currently being re-mapped and updated.  

 
VII. CLASSIFIED SENATE PRESIDENT REPORT  

A. Carl Banks (outgoing MiraCosta College Classified Senate President) gave a report on behalf of 
the Classified Senate, thanking the foundation board for its partnership and informing the new 
president for FY23-24 will be Omar Jimenez, who works in the Social Justice & Equity Center 
on campus. He also shared the Classified Senate hosts a holiday event each year that serves 
as a fundraiser for scholarships, and they have been able to endow one student scholarship and 
are currently working on another.  

 
VIII. BREAK 

 
IX. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES  

A. By motion of Board Member Stillinger, seconded by Board Member Pearson, the minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of February 21, 2023 were approved.  
 
Vote:  12/0/0/4 
Aye: Adams, Babiarz, Bandemer, Crockett, Kurth, McGuigan, Musser, Pearson, 

Saadat, Stillinger, Troutman, Wiback 
Nay: None 
Abstentions: None 
Absent:  Budnik, Figueroa, L’Heureux, Shaunak 
 

X. GOVERNANCE AND NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE UPDATE  
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A. By motion of Board Member Wiback, seconded by Board Member Crockett, the proposed Board 
Officer Election Policy was approved.  
 
Vote:  12/0/0/4 
Aye: Adams, Babiarz, Bandemer, Crockett, Kurth, McGuigan, Musser, Pearson, 

Saadat, Stillinger, Troutman, Wiback 
Nay: None 
Abstentions: None 
Absent:  Budnik, Figueroa, L’Heureux, Shaunak 
   

B. Governance and Nominations Committee Chair Stillinger thanked Board Member Adams for his 
service on the board of directors, informing the board that he is not seeking a second term. His 
service will be completed as of 6/30/2023. He was presented with a plant from the horticulture 
department and a thank you card.  
 

C. By motion of Chair Stillinger, seconded by Board Member Saadat, Board Member Pearson was 
elected to serve a second term as a member of the MiraCosta College Foundation Board of 
Directors. Her second term will run from July 1, 2023 until June 30, 2026.  
 
Vote:  12/0/0/4 
Aye: Adams, Babiarz, Bandemer, Crockett, Kurth, McGuigan, Musser, Pearson, 

Saadat, Stillinger, Troutman, Wiback 
Nay: None 
Abstentions: None 
Absent:  Budnik, Figueroa, L’Heureux, Shaunak 
 

XI. FINANCE COMMITTEE PRESENTATION  
A. By motion of Board Member Musser, seconded by Vice President Kurth, the FY22-23 Q3 

Financials were approved as presented by Finance Committee Chair Bandemer. 
 
Vote:  12/0/0/4 
Aye: Adams, Babiarz, Bandemer, Crockett, Kurth, McGuigan, Musser, Pearson, 

Saadat, Stillinger, Troutman, Wiback 
Nay: None 
Abstentions: None 
Absent:  Budnik, Figueroa, L’Heureux, Shaunak 
 

B. Finance Committee Chair Bandemer reviewed the FY22-23 Q3 Recap. No action was taken.  
i. Board Member Adams asked if it is possible to use endowed funds for emergency needs 

and encouraged the board to fund student needs.  
 

C. By motion of Board Member Musser, seconded by Board member Pearson, the FY 23-24 
Operating Budget was approved as presented by VP/ED Stubblefield.  

 
Vote:  12/0/0/4 
Aye: Adams, Babiarz, Bandemer, Crockett, Kurth, McGuigan, Musser, Pearson, 

Saadat, Stillinger, Troutman, Wiback 
Nay: None 
Abstentions: None 
Absent:  Budnik, Figueroa, L’Heureux, Shaunak 
 

XII. AUDIT COMMITTEE PRESENTATION  
A. Audit Committee Member Musser informed the board that the FY21-22 Audit is currently being 

revised and will be presented for a vote at the FY23-24 Q1 board meeting.  
 

XIII. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PRESENTATION  
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A. VP/ED Stubblefield reviewed the process of a Consent Agenda, explaining the MiraCosta 
College Board of Trustees uses one. Trustee Clendening commented that Finance Items would 
be taken separately from the Consent Agenda.  

i. The board will vote on whether to adopt a Consent Agenda at the next quarterly board 
meeting.  

 
XIV. INNOVATION GRANTS & SCHOLARSHIPS COMMITTEE UPDATE  

A. Innovation Grants & Scholarships Committee Chair Saadat gave an update on the statistics for 
Spring 2023 scholarships and updates to the process for Innovation Grants (applications 
opening May 19).  

i. Details of her report are attached to the minutes for this meeting.  
ii. Staff are continuing to work on a solution for scholarship applicant privacy.  
iii. President/Superintendent Cooke encouraged the committee to connect with campus 

systems that have already prioritized funding requests, so departments with known 
needs can apply for these grants.  

 
XV. COMPREHENSIVE CAMPAIGN COMMITTEE UPDATE  

A. Associate Director Fishinger gave an update that the Comprehensive Campaign is nearing $7.9 
million and President McGuigan reiterated the goal of completing the campaign by June 30, 
2024.  

B. Vice President/Executive Director Stubblefield explained the Title V Endowment Matching 
Campaign being launched, including that this is an opportunity to provide for students’ long term 
while also working on cases for support for current emergency needs and naming opportunities.  

 
XVI. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND MEETING AND EVENT CALENDAR REVIEW  

A. The calendar for FY23/24 meetings was shared with the board, along with current committee 
assignments and vacancies. Administrative Assistant Lurenana will send meeting requests to 
board members of these meetings and encouraged board members to contact President 
McGuigan if they would like to fill openings on committees.  

i. Written updates from the Office of the Superintendent/President, Administrative Services 
& Board of Trustees; MM Bond Oversight Representative Babiarz; and Institutional 
Advancement were included in the agenda packet for board members to review.  
 

XVII. FINAL COMMENTS BY ALL PARTICIPANTS  
A. Trustee Clendening encouraged board members to attend as many campus events as possible 

and encouraged the board to tap into community groups for funding.  
B. MM Bond Oversight Committee Representative Babiarz informed the board they are invited to a 

topping out ceremony for the new Biotech Building on May 17, 2023 at 11:30am.  
C. ASG President Ayala thanked the board for the opportunity to join them for meetings in FY22-

23. Her term ends June 30, 2023.  
D. Director Huyck informed the board that PIO will be working on marketing packages. 
E. Multiple board members expressed thanks to board leadership and staff and deep appreciation 

for the student services presentation.   
F. Other suggestions included connecting board members with affinity groups on campus, having 

a volunteer event for board members with the CARE Program, and increasing the amount of 
time board members spend both together and on campus as well as bringing prospects for tours 
of campus and to meet staff. 

 
XVIII. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

A. Presentation by scholarship or innovation grant recipient 
 
XIX. ADJOURNMENT & RECEPTION  

A. The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation 
Request for Consideration of Consent Agenda 

Board President and Foundation VP/ED Summary and Recommendations 

Definition of a Consent Agenda 
Agenda items not deemed to require discussion and require only the action of approval can be grouped to form 
the consent agenda. As a result, they are recommended to be voted on together without discussion. In Roberts 
Rules of Order, this is called a Consent Calendar.  

Purpose of Adopting a Consent Agenda 
Consent agendas free up meeting time for more energetic, meaningful discussions around goals, actions, and 
strategy. In addition, Board members play a more active role in preparing for the meeting and determining what 
the issues and topics of discussion will be, during the meeting, since board members can request that any 
agenda item be removed from the consent agenda for individual discussion.  

Ensuring Success 
Success requires board members to have sufficient time to read the entire packet to determine if any item 
should be pulled separately from the consent agenda for discussion and approval. In addition, Board members 
can use the extra time to bring energy and discussion into topics that can move the foundation forward and 
create momentum in achieving goals. 

Process 
The Foundation Board President, with the Vice President of Advancement / Executive Director, identifies which 
items to include in the consent agenda when preparing the board meeting agenda and packet.  

• In the meeting agenda, the consent agenda is listed immediately following the “Changes in Agenda 
Order” item (towards the beginning of the meeting).  

• When introducing the consent agenda, the Board President will ask members which items, if any, 
should be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. Members may request that an item be 
removed for any reason. For example, board members may want to discuss, question, or vote against 
the item.  

• Any items requested will be removed without question.  
• Items will be placed on the meeting agenda separately following the consent agenda or later in the 

meeting, as determined by the Board President.  
• When no more items are to be removed, the Board President or Administrative Assistant reads out the 

numbers for the items remaining on the consent agenda and asks for a motion to approve, a second, 
and a final vote of approval by the board members.  

• When preparing the minutes, the Secretary includes the full text of the resolutions, reports, or 
recommendations adopted as part of the consent agenda.  

Items to be considered for consent agenda in FY 23/24 
• Approval of board meeting minutes 
• Financial statements – only if discussion is not needed 
• Reports provided for informational purposes 

o Committee Reports 
o Executive Reports  
o Informational Reports or Material  

• Organizational Documents – routine updates (spelling, formatting, date changes, title changes, address 
changes, etc.) 

• Routine Correspondence or Conventional Bylaws Actions (signatory authority for a bank account, 
annual contract updates, or other routine items that require board approval as stated in bylaws).  
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You’re invited to participate in the CARE Program’s Food 
Distribution Event on Tuesday, September 12 from 12:30 
until 2:30 p.m.  
 
If you want to volunteer for this event, RSVP to Elizabeth 
today. *If we do not have a minimum of five board members 
who plan to participate, we will find a new date.  
 
Current RSVPs:  
 Hema Crockett 
 Val Saadat 
 
Please note that this will be outdoors, and the activity level will 
vary depending on the number of volunteers. (In other words, 
some moments may be very busy, while others may include 
waiting for activity.) Volunteers may join for the full event or 
partial, depending on your schedule.  
 
Please wear close-toed shoes, a hat, and sunblock.  
The CARE program will provide lunch for those who volunteer.  
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CR ACC - Foundation Balance Sheet
Repeat By
Period FY2022-23 - 12-Jun
Worktags *Kindly note that this is a preliminary Q4 report, final entries and steps are taking place for year-end close.
Calculate Current Year Retained EaYes

MiraCosta College Foundation Unrestricted Restricted Restricted & Unrestricted Restricted & Unrestricted
Period: FY2022-23 - 12-Jun Total Year Total ‐ 7/1/2021‐6/30/2

Assets 2,759,287.45 18,473,350.16 21,232,637.61 20,259,618.93
Cash 454,385.17 703,957.21 1,158,342.38 1,898,763.34
Investments 1,733,534.34 16,805,896.04 18,539,430.38 16,466,754.74
Deferred Gifts - Assets 426,799.00 753,378.91 1,180,177.91 1,180,177.91
Accounts Receivable/Prepaids 144,568.94 210,118.00 354,686.94 713,922.94

Total Assets 2,759,287.45 18,473,350.16 21,232,637.61 20,259,618.93
Liabilities 29,416.72 25,650.49 55,067.21 160,194.19

Accounts Payable 29,416.72 25,650.49 55,067.21 160,194.19
Due To Related Entities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due From Related Entities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Liabilities 29,416.72 25,650.49 55,067.21 160,194.19
Net Position 2,729,870.73 18,447,699.67 21,177,570.40 20,099,424.74
Total Liability/Net Position 2,759,287.45 18,473,350.16 21,232,637.61 20,259,618.93
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CR ACC - Foundation Income Statement
Repeat By
Period FY2022-23 - 12-Jun
Worktags *Kindly note that this is a preliminary Q4 report, final entries and steps are taking place for year-end close.

MiraCosta College Foundation Unrestricted Restricted Restricted & Unrestricted Restricted & Unrestricted
Period: FY2022-23 - 12-Jun Total r Year Total ‐ 7/1/2021‐6/30/2

Revenues 227,201.24 2,779,984.24 3,007,185.48 (710,029.16)
Deferred Gifts- Revenue 0 0 0 466.73
Contributions 124,722.80 922,895.09 1,047,617.89 1,545,340.78
Investment Activity 102,478.44 1,715,760.13 1,818,238.57 (2,689,406.13)
Gifts In Kind- Revenue 0 141,329.02 141,329.02 433,569.46

Total Revenue 227,201.24 2,779,984.24 3,007,185.48 (710,029.16)
Transfers 169,507.55 (169,507.55) 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 656,149.13 639,533.17 1,295,682.30 814,430.20
Transfers Out (486,641.58) (809,040.72) (1,295,682.30) (814,430.20)

Total Transfers 169,507.55 (169,507.55) 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue and Transfers 396,708.79 2,610,476.69 3,007,185.48 (710,029.16)
Expenditures 402,175.44 1,526,864.38 1,929,039.82 2,115,041.78

General And Administrative 394,441.44 558,015.50 952,456.94 1,417,460.14
Direct Student Aid 2,334.00 77,715.90 80,049.90 85,920.30
Scholarships 5,400.00 749,803.96 755,203.96 527,993.88
Gifts In Kind- Expense 0.00 141,329.02 141,329.02 83,667.46

Total Expenditures 402,175.44 1,526,864.38 1,929,039.82 2,115,041.78
Net Fund Balance, Beginning of 
Year 2,735,337.38 17,364,087.36

20,099,424.74 22,924,495.68

Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures (5,466.65) 1,083,612.31

1,078,145.66 (2,825,070.94)

Net Fund Balance, End of Period 2,729,870.73 18,447,699.67 21,177,570.40 20,099,424.74
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Top 10 Donors 
FY22-23 Q4

Name Gift Amount Gift Date Fund
Dorothy Rupe Caregiver Program $40,000 4/27/2023 Arthur Rupe Nursing Program Grant
Julie Hatoff $25,907 6/22/2023 Hatoff Tapestries - Pledge Payment
Las Patronas $20,000 4/20/2023 TCI Grant Fund
County of San Diego $20,000 5/15/2023 TCI Grant Fund
Seth Sprague Educational and Charitable Foundation $20,000 5/22/2023 Former Foster Youth
San Diego Foundation $18,495 4/7/2023 MiraCosta Police E-Bike Program
Janice & Matthias Kurth $10,262 6/30/2023 Endowment Matching Campaign
Wells Fargo & Company $10,000 4/20/2023 Small Business Development Annual Event
Cushman Foundation $10,000 6/29/2023 Student Emergency Financial Assistance
Nordson Corporation Foundation $10,000 5/25/2023 Stream Festival
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Recap of Cash and Investments
6/30/2023

As of 06.30.2023 

CASH & ST OPERATING

US Bank 284,052.69 US Bank Statement balance; Cash in ledger may have a different balance due to outstanding checks or deposit in transit. 
LAIF 905,164.66 LAIF Statement balance

1,189,217.35

INVESTMENTS

Vanguard ‐ Endowment Portfolio 13,262,041.29
Vanguard ‐ Excess Reserve Portfolio 3,444,770.59
Vanguard ‐ Reserve Portfolio 1,009,272.21
Vanguard ‐ JAFFY 60,596.19
Osher, as of June 30, 2022 762,750.10

18,539,430.38

Recommendation: 
Move from LAIF to US Bank for FY23‐24 scholarships and 
payments 392,903.47

Funds parked in LAIF from 12/31/2022 Distributions and fees 
(3.5% Endowment distribution for Fall Scholarships) 
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2021-22 End. Distr. Allocations 
 

Proposed Unrestricted/Restricted Endowed Fund Allocations for FY23/24 
 

Unrestricted Endowed Fund 
Balance as of June 30, 2023 

Unrestricted Endowed 
Fund 

 Distribution Balance as of 
June 30, 2023 

Recommended Allocations 

Louis E. and Floy Masinter - 
#100451_GF 
$1,582,997.35 
 

Distribution #100822_GF 
$59,777.32 

$0.00 – Rudolf Endowment (done per 
agreement ten years from FY12/13)         
 
$0.00 – Innovation Grants (FY22-23 
awarded $27,000, excess of $47,000 
remaining in the fund as of 6-30-2023)  
 
$10,000 – Development Events  
 
$12,000 – Executive Director Goodwill 
fund 
 

Katherine Chaffee - #100461_GF 
$417,838.27 
 

Distribution #100831_GF 
$14,094.38 

 
$10,000 – Alumni Association  
 

General Endowment - 
#100453_GF 
$3299,885. 

Distribution #100824_GF 
$2,575.27  
 

 
$0.00 (allowing the fund to grow for 
other unrestricted campus needs)  
 

   
Restricted Endowed Fund 

Balance as of June 30, 2023 
 

Restricted Endowed Fund 
 Distribution Balance as of 

June 30, 2023 
Recommended Allocations 

MiraCosta Promise - #100458_GF 
$122,707.01 
 

Distribution #100828_GF 
$17,384.05 
 

$17,384 Scholarships to Promise 
students 

 

Rudolph agreement: Board Resolution.docx  
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I. Background and Mission 

The MiraCosta College Foundation (hereafter referred to as the 
“Foundation”) is an independent, 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation 
created to support students by funding their pursuits toward a higher 
education and providing the resources to help guide them toward 
success. 

For over 40 years, the vision of the Foundation has supported the 
vision that no one is denied access to education because of financial 
need and that resources are available to enrich the college 
experience for all students. In service to this vision, the Foundation’s 
mission is to promote the interests and welfare of the college and to 
secure resources that will transform student lives. 

II. Introduction 

This policy is intended as a basic guide for safeguarding and 
managing the Foundation’s assets including the development of 
spending goals, investment strategies (including asset allocation) 
and investment performance review and reporting collectively 
comprise the “Portfolio”. The Portfolio’s assets will normally be held in 
one of three subordinate portfolios (or pools). These are (1) the 
“Reserve Portfolio” (2) Excess Reserve Portfolio (3) the “Endowment 
Portfolio” and (4) Title V Grant Endowment. 

This investment Policy Statement sets forth the investment 
objectives, distribution policies, and investment guidelines that 
govern the activities of the Committee and any other parties to 
whom the Committee has delegated investment management 
responsibility for Portfolio assets. 
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The investment policies for the Foundation contained herein have 
been formulated consistent with the Foundation’s Mission, reflects its 
anticipated financial needs and its willingness to assume investment 
and financial risk, as reflected in the majority opinion of the 
Committee. 

Policies contained in this statement are intended to provide 
guidelines, where necessary, for ensuring that the Portfolio’s 
investments are managed consistent with the short-term and long-
term financial goals of the Foundation. At the same time, they are 
intended to provide for sufficient investment flexibility in the face of 
changes in capital market conditions and in the financial 
circumstances of the Institution. 

III. Role of the Finance Committee and the Foundation Board 

The Foundation Board (the “Board”) has a fiduciary responsibility to 
comply with the restrictions imposed by the donors of endowment 
funds. The Board also has a legal responsibility to ensure that the 
management of endowment funds is in compliance with the Uniform 
Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 

The Finance Committee of the Foundation Board (the “Committee”) 
acts in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the Foundation and is 
accountable to the College and the Board for overseeing the 
investment and safeguarding of all assets owned by or held in trust. 
Foundation Management (“Management”) is defined as the 
Foundation’s Executive Director who oversees endowment 
accounting and makes recommendations to the Committee. 

a. The Committee will review this Investment Policy Statement at 
least once per year. 
Changes to this Investment Policy Statement can be made only 
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by affirmation of a majority of the Committee, and final Board 
approval. Written confirmation of the changes will be provided 
to all Committee members and to any other parties hired on 
behalf of the Foundation as soon thereafter as is practicable. 

b. Standard of Fiduciary Care. The primary and constant standard 
for making investment and spending decisions for all Portfolio 
assets is the “Prudent Person Rule” which states that “the 
members of the governing board shall act with the care, 
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing a prudent person acting in a like capacity and 
familiar with these matters would use in the conduct of an 
enterprise of like character and with like aims to accomplish the 
purposes of the institution” in compliance with Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act. 

IV. Manager Selection 

Investment management of the Portfolio (including its constituent 
pools) shall be recommended by the Committee for approval by the 
Board based on a selection process as established by the 
Committee. The Committee may elect to appoint a single manager 
for the Reserve Portfolio, Excess Reserve Portfolio, and the Endowment 
Portfolio or separate managers for each. The Committee may also 
elect to manage the Reserve Portfolio itself. In addition to evaluating 
a manager’s historical performance compared to appropriate 
benchmarks, a manager’s ethical standards, financial viability, 
organizational structure, experience of key personnel, and 
investment philosophy will also be reviewed. 

V. Investment Objectives 

a. The Endowment Portfolio is to be invested with the objective of 
preserving the long-term, real purchasing power of assets while 

2023.08.15 MCC Foundation Board Meeting Agenda Packet Page 17 of 76



2023.07.26 DRAFT MCC Foundation Investment & Spending Policy Page 4 of 13 

providing a relatively predictable and growing stream of annual 
distributions in support of the institution. The attainment of this 
broad objective will provide a balance between current 
spending needs of the Foundation and the need to preserve the 
purchasing power of the endowment for future generations. 

b. The Reserve Portfolio. Assets apportioned to the Reserve 
Portfolio are intended for use “on demand” are to be invested 
with the objective of preservation of capital and short-term 
liquidity. Only high-quality short–term investment vehicles are 
appropriate for this portfolio. 

c. The Excess Reserve Portfolio is to be comprised of funds that are 
above an approved threshold to adequately fund the Reserve 
Portfolio. Assets in the Excess Reserve Portfolio are intended to 
preserve capital, provide a relatively predictable stream on 
income, and achieve moderate growth of principal. Assets are 
to be used as a supplemental source of funds for the Reserve 
Portfolio. 

c.d. The Title V Grant Endowment is to be comprised of 
Endowment Fund corpus (an amount equal to the endowment 
challenge grant or grants awarded under this part plus 
matching funds provided by the institution), Endowment Fund 
Income (an amount equal to the total value of the fund, 
including appreciation and retained interest and dividend, 
minus the endowment fund corpus). Each endowment 
challenge grant awarded must be matched by the Foundation, 
must be invested by the Foundation, and must have a duration 
of 20 years (Please reference spending rules in grant document 
PART 628 for additional spending rules). 
 
NOTE: Please reference the Investment and Spending Policy 
Flow Chart located within the appendix. 
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VI. Solicitation and Acceptance of Gifts Policy 

A. A separate policy has been adopted and approved by the 
Foundation to provide general information about the criteria 
and framework by which donations may be accepted or 
recommended to the Board for acceptance. This information 
should not be interpreted as legal advice, nor is the policy 
intended to override current IRS code and regulations. This 
policy includes: 
• Special gifts acceptance 
• Gifts of tangible property and equipment (gifts-in-kind) 
• Gifts of real property 
• Gifts of securities, limited partnerships and other tangible 
property 
• Gifts of life insurance 
• Charitable Remainder Trusts 
• Digital currency 

VII. Spending Policy 

A. Foundation spending shall be funded from these sources: 
 

o Current undesignated gifts (not designated as 
endowments), 

o An annual endowment management fee (presently 1.5%) 
assessed on total Endowment Portfolio assets), and 

o Partial distributions of net investment income (from 
interest or dividends) or net realized capital gains from the 
Endowment Portfolio 

o Short term deficiencies or excess of cash needs may be 
balanced by withdrawals from/deposits to the Reserve 
Portfolio. Cash accumulations from earnings and capital 
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gains that exceed the approved spending budget for any 
year will be reinvested. 

 

B. Purpose of Spending. The Foundation exists to support the 
educational needs of the College. Consistent with prudent 
financial stewardship, the Foundation will spend its income 
each year for the purposes designated and/or approved by its 
Board. This will include a portion (1.5% endowment  
management fee) designated for the foundation’s business 
operations, fundraising and other work of the Foundation and a 
percentage set by the Board (currently 3.5%) for charitable 
purposes. Thus, the current spending rate is 5%. 
 
Endowment Portfolio earnings in excess of the Board 
established spending rate will be reinvested in the Endowment 
Portfolio to protect the endowment’s purchasing power from 
one generation to the next. 

 

B.C. NOTE: Title V Grant Endowment must be held for 20 years. 
Please reference spending rules in grant document PART 628. 
Title V Grant Endowment funds will not be included in the 
aforementioned ‘Purpose of Spending’.  

 

C.D. Limitations on Spending -- General Policy. In general, 
current spending will not be funded by accessing the principal 
corpus of the Endowment Portfolio. The distribution of 
Endowment Portfolio assets will be permitted to the extent that 
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such distributions do not exceed a level that would erode the 
Foundation’s real assets over time. The Committee will seek to 
reduce the variability of annual Foundation distributions by 
factoring past spending and Portfolio asset values into its 
current spending decisions. The Committee will review its 
spending assumptions annually for the purpose of deciding 
whether any changes therein necessitate amending the 
Foundation’s spending policy, its target asset allocation, or 
both. Establishing the Spending Rate. The Committee will review 
and recommend the annual spending rate to the Board within 
60 days following the end of each calendar year. The 
Foundation presently seeks to maintain an annual spending 
rate of no more than 5.5% of the 3-year trailing average of the 
Endowment Portfolio (valued on December 31 of each year.) 
Any excess earnings will be re-invested into the Endowment 
Portfolio. An endowment management fee of 1.5% will be 
assessed first, then a maximum of 4% will be used for charitable 
purposes as designated by the donor or determined by the 
Board. (See Appendix 1 for related administrative procedures. 
 

D.E. Adjusting the Endowment Management Fee. The 
Committee has the option of adjusting the endowment 
management fee up to the Uniform Prudent Management 
of Institutional Funds Act mandated maximum of 2%. The 
Committee also has the option of reducing the fee as long as 
the resulting fee income to the Foundation is adequate to fully 
fund operational and employee costs. (See Appendix 1 for 
related administrative procedures.) 
 

E.F. Maintaining an Operational Reserve. Recognizing that 
stability and continuity are important to good management 
and administration, the Management will seek to hold an 
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operational reserve such that in down market years reductions 
in business operations and layoffs are unnecessary. In addition, 
Management will aim for a stable budget, and when necessary, 
plan for significant increases or cuts to the budget to meet 
extraordinary one-time costs. 

VIII. Portfolio Investment Policies 

A. Diversification – All Portfolios 
Diversification across and within asset classes is the primary 
means by which the Committee expects the Portfolio to avoid 
undue risk of large losses over long time periods. To protect the 
Portfolio against unfavorable outcomes within an asset class 
due to the assumption of large risks, the Committee will take 
reasonable precautions to avoid excessive investment 
concentrations. Specifically, the following guidelines will be in 
place: 

1. With the exception of fixed income investments explicitly 
guaranteed by the U.S. Government, no single investment 
security shall represent more than 5% of total Portfolio 
assets. 

2. With the exception of passively managed investment 
vehicles seeking to match the returns on a broadly 
diversified market index, no single investment pool or 
investment company (mutual fund) shall comprise more 
than 20% of total Portfolio 
assets. 

3. With respect to fixed income investments, for individual 
bonds, the minimum average credit quality of these 
investments shall be investment grade (Standard & Poor’s 
BBB or Moody’s Baa or higher). 
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Other Investment Policies. Unless expressly authorized by the 
Committee, the Portfolio and its investment managers are 
prohibited from: 

1. Purchasing securities on margin or executing short sales. 
2. Pledging or hypothecating securities, except for loans of 

securities that are fully collateralized. 
3. Engaging investment managers who promise to engage 

in such practices. 

     B. Asset Allocation-General 

1. The Committee recognizes that the careful allocation of 
Portfolio assets among financial asset and sub asset 
categories with varying degrees of risk, return, and 
risk-return correlation will be the most significant 
determinant of long-term investment returns and 
achievement of Portfolio objectives for each of the 
Foundation’s Portfolios. 

2. The Committee expects that actual returns and return 
volatility may vary from expectations and return 
objectives across short periods of time. While the 
Committee wishes to retain flexibility with respect to 
making periodic changes to the Portfolio’s asset 
allocation, it expects to do so only in the event of material 
changes to the Foundation, to the assumptions underlying 
Foundation spending policies, and/or to the capital 
markets and asset classes in which the Portfolio invests. 

     C. Asset Allocation Policy-Specific to the Endowment Portfolio 
             and Excess Reserve Portfolio 
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1. Foundation assets comprising the Endowment and Excess 
Reserve Portfolios will be managed as a balanced portfolio 
composed of two major components: an equity portion 
and a fixed income portion. The expected role of equity 
investments will be to maximize the long-term real growth 
of Endowment and Excess Reserve Portfolio assets, while 
the role of fixed income investments will be to generate 
current income, provide for more stable periodic returns, 
and provide some protection against a prolonged 
decline in the market value of the equity investments. 

2. Cash investments will, under normal circumstances, only 
be considered as temporary holdings in the Portfolio, and 
will be used for Foundation liquidity 
needs or to facilitate a planned program of dollar cost 
averaging into investments in either or both of the equity 
and fixed income asset classes. 

3. Exhibit A (below) presents the long-term strategic asset 
allocation guidelines, presently determined by the 
Committee to be the most appropriate for the 
Endowment, given the Foundation’s long-term objectives 
and short-term constraints. 

       D. Asset Allocation Policy-Specific to the Reserve Portfolio 

 Assets are to be invested in cash or cash/equivalents or as 
outlined in Exhibit B (below). Any fixed income investment 
duration should be aligned with the potential need for funds; 
resulting is a duration target not to exceed 3 years. All 
investments are required to exceed a minimum standard of 
investment-grade (BBB or Baa) 
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E. Asset Allocation Policy-Specific to the Excess Reserve 
Portfolio 

Exhibit C (below) reflects the asset allocation recommended by the 
Committee for the Excess Reserve Portfolio  

F.Asset Allocation Policy-Specific to the Title V Grant Endowment 
Portfolio 

Exhibit D (below) reflects the asset allocation recommended by the 
Committee for the Title V Grant Endowment within the stated 
parameters of the grant bylaws. 

        F. Rebalancing 

1. It is expected that the Endowment Portfolio’s actual asset 
allocation will vary from its target asset allocation as a 
result of the varying periodic returns earned on its 
investments in different asset and sub asset classes. The 
Endowment and Excess Reserve Portfolio will be 
rebalanced to its target 
normal asset allocation under the following procedures: 

2. The investment manager will use incoming cash flow 
(contributions) or outgoing money movements 
(disbursements) of the Portfolio or realign the current 
weightings closer to the target weightings for the Portfolio. 

3. The investment manager will review the Portfolio quarterly 
to determine the deviation from target weightings. During 
each quarterly review, the following parameters will be 
applied: 

i. If any asset class (equity or fixed income) within the 
Portfolio is +/-5 percentage points from its target 
weighting, the Portfolio will be rebalanced. 
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ii. If any fund within the Portfolio has increased or 
decreased by greater than 20% of its target 
weighting, the fund will be rebalanced. 

iii. The investment manager may provide a rebalancing 
recommendation at any time. 

4. Performance shall be measured on a total return, time-
weighted basis and presented for the most recent quarter, 
year-to-date, and the trailing years, three years, and five 
years. Performance for periods greater than one year shall 
be expressed on an annualized basis. To facilitate 
performance comparisons, investment results should be 
expressed both gross and net of fees. 

5. The specific performance objective is to attain, within 
acceptable risk levels, an average annual long-term total 
return that meets or exceeds the sum of the Foundation’s 
spending rate plus inflation (as measured by the CPI, 
consumer price index) plus investment management and 
related fees. In cases where the Foundation is appointed 
trustee of a charitable trust, the investment objective is to 
achieve a return that satisfies the distribution rate while 
retaining as much corpus as possible. 

        G. Reporting 
                 Investment reports shall be provided by the investment 
manager(s) on a (calendar) quarterly basis or more frequently if 
requested by the Committee. 
                 Each investment manager is expected to be available to 
review portfolio structure, strategy, and investment performance 
annually with the Investment Committee. 
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*No Changes to Flow Chart OR Exhibits A, B or C 
(https://foundation.miracosta.edu/foundation-board/board-manual/investment-
and-spending-policy.html) 

Exhibit D 

a) A grantee shall invest, for the duration of the grant period, the 
endowment fund established under this part in savings accounts or 
in low-risk securities in which a regulated insurance company may 
invest under the law of the State in which the institution is located.  
(b) When investing the endowment fund, the grantee shall exercise 
the judgment and care, under the circumstances, that a person of 
prudence, discretion and intelligence would exercise in the 
management of his or her own financial affairs.  
(c) An institution may invest its endowment fund in savings accounts 
permitted under paragraph (a) of this section such as—  

(1) A federally insured bank savings account;  
(2) A comparable interest-bearing account offered by a bank; 
or  
(3) A money market fund.  

(d) An institution may invest its endowment fund in low-risk 
securities permitted under paragraph (a) of this section such as—  

(1) Certificates of deposit;  
(2) Mutual funds; 

 (3) Stocks; or 
 (4) Bonds.  
(e) An institution may not invest its endowment fund in real estate. 
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOARD MEMBERS  

Board members are first and foremost ambassadors for MiraCosta 
College and the foundation’s mission to promote the benefits of 
MiraCosta College and secure resources that transform lives.  with 
our vision of providing educational opportunities for all.  

Board members are responsible for assuring the Foundation’s 
fiduciary conformance related to fiscal management in the 
receiving, managing, and administering of gifts received for the 
benefit of MiraCosta College. The Board of Directors is the active 
governing body of the MiraCosta College Foundation. The board is 
responsible for approving and implementing the foundation’s 
mission, providing financial oversight, and fundraising for the 
foundation. Board members are expected to be active players in 
three fundamental ways: as donors, participants, and advocates.    

As Donors:  Board Mmembers are expected to donate at least $1,000 
annually to the Foundation. Ideally, this should come from a personal 
donation by the member. Being able to state that all members are 
donors makes a powerful statement about commitment and 
credibility to individuals, companies, and institutions being asked to 
support MiraCosta College.   

As Participants:  Board Mmembers are actively involved in governing 
the foundation including monitoring and approving foundation 
policies and procedures, reviewing and approving the annual 
budget, and providing financial oversight. Board members are 
expected to attend the annual board retreat and at least two board 
meetings per year (for a total of three out of four board meetings), 
actively participate in at least two committees, and attend at least 
two college events and one foundation/fundraising event per year.   
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As Advocates:  Board members speak favorably about promote the 
MiraCosta Ccollege to friends, family, and colleagues who might  and 
acquaintances that may have the ability to assistsupport the college 
financially. Board members are ambassadors; they know the college 
story, tell it, and sell it.   

Examples of ways in which board members may fulfill their roles:  

 Advocating. A board member can contribute information 
about the college in conversation, helping to create a positive 
image of the college in the community. 

 Introducing. A board member may have a philanthropic friend 
or colleague who has an interest in higher education. The board 
member would talk to his or her friend about the college and 
introduce his/her friend to the appropriate college personnel. 

 Hosting. Hosting prospective donors for campus tours together 
with staff. Board members are willing to bring individuals to 
campus and participate in a campus tour. 

 Sponsoring. Sponsoring a college event at home/business. 
Board members are willing (as appropriate) to make their 
home or place of business the site of a President’s Circle or 
foundation event. 

 Fundraising. Assist with donor strategy, cultivation, and/or 
stewardship. 

 Information Conduit. Serving as the eyes and ears of the 
college, identifying donor opportunities, and alerting staff to 
potential problems. If a board member hears positive or 
negative information about the college, the board member is 
comfortable relaying the information in confidence. 

  

Leadership 
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To uphold the experience of each Mira Costa College Foundation 
Board member while ensuring the Board operates to its full capacity, 
it is essential that the roles of all key players are clearly defined. The 
College defines the role of the College Superintendent/President and 
the Vice President of Institutional Advancement (VP). Board 
members shape their roles and set expectations of fellow board 
members that create a productive and positive volunteer 
experience. This self-governance is led by the board chair. 

Role of the Foundation's ChairBoard President 

The chair Board President is a full partner with the College President 
and the Vice President. The collaboration between these three roles 
sets up the structure needed for the members of the boardboard 
members to fully participate. 

 Coordination. Touching base regularly with committee chairs to 
coordinate and monitor committee activities. 

 Communication. Communicating with the President and VP; 
keeping informed of committee activity; and touching base 
regularly with board members. 

 Leadership. Modeling leadership behavior. The chair sets the 
standard for philanthropic participation and in the College’s 
fundraising events and efforts. 

Role of the College Superintendent/President 

The Superintendent/President’s role is the key in establishing the 
credibility of the Board as the institution’s senior volunteer 
organization. 
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 Leadership. Providing leadership for the board, raising the 
visibility of the Foundation and its benefits in the community at 
large as well as the campus community. 

 Inner Circle. Sharing college information with the “inner circle.” 
The Superintendent/President is expected to keep the Board 
abreast of the latest developments throughout the District. 

 Working Culture. Building a working culture for the Board. By 
example, the Superintendent/President leads the Board in its 
fundraising work, and is a full partner in the process of donor 
identification, cultivation, and solicitation. 

Role of the Vice President of Advancement  

The role of the Vice President of Institutional Advancement (Vice 
President) is to design, develop, and implement strategic plans for 
the organization in a cost-effective and time-efficient manner. The 
Vice President is also responsible for the day-to-day operation of the 
Foundation, including managing staff and developing business 
plans. The Vice President is accountable to the College 
Superintendent/President and provides quarterly progress reports to 
the Foundation Board. Board members are invited to offer 
suggestions and ideas about how to improve the organization, and 
the Vice President decides whether and how to implement these 
ideas. 

 Leadership. Is visionary, providing leadership in fundraising 
strategies and programs and is flexible and responsive. 

 Communication. Providing timely communications to board 
members regarding college plans and development program 
progress in meeting strategic and tactical goals. 

 Board Development. Developing and nurturing the existing 
talents of the board members, participating in the identification 
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of potential members, and connecting board members with 
service opportunities. 

 Fundraising and Administrative Expertise. Staying on the cutting 
edge of the profession through continuous professional 
development. 

**Learn more about Brown Act Compliance Requirements. 
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MiraCosta College 

2023 Endowment Matching Gift Campaign 

What legacy do you want to leave behind? 

About MiraCosta College and the Foundation  

Founded nearly 90 years ago, MiraCosta College is a public community college serving nearly 
22,000 students in eleven communities throughout North County San Diego. MiraCosta College 
offers undergraduate degrees, university transfer courses, career-and-technical education, 
certificate programs, basic-skills education, and lifelong-learning opportunities. 

The MiraCosta College Foundation, in partnership with our generous community, provides 
financial support for students pursuing their higher education dreams, on their path toward 
success. The foundation’s vision for MiraCosta is educational opportunities for all.  

Student Needs – Leave your legacy by giving for tomorrow 
Nearly 50% of MiraCosta College students rely on financial aid to fund their education and basic 
living expenses, but often this is not nearly enough today, let alone tomorrow. 

With the rising cost of education, the needs will continue to grow into the future. Close to 30% of 
students are the first in their families to attend college. MiraCosta College stands firm in its 
values of equity and inclusion, illustrated by a student body that is 60% women and 60% 
students of color.  

The next generation of students will face untold challenges. While we can’t predict the future, 
we know that we can prepare.  

In 2023, we have an opportunity to build an endowment that will support thousands of 
MiraCosta College students tomorrow – in the next generation and for years to follow.  

Tomorrow’s legacy is an endowment funded now.  Your gift creates a permanent fund where 
the donation is invested and the interest is used for specific purposes, such as student 
scholarships. The fund is invested for intergenerational growth and the interest earned on the 
investment is used to fund charitable purposes designated by the donor. 

Investing in the Next Generation of Students 
Our goal is to raise $600,000 from the community, which will be matched dollar for dollar, to 
total $1.2M. Our collective $1.2M will be invested and grow with the market for years to come.  

If I invest today, how much will my gift be worth tomorrow? 
Gifts to the matching endowment campaign are estimated to grow 6% annually. As a result, 
after being doubled by the match, the total amount will be invested and is projected to grow by 
nearly 300% within 20 years. 
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Dollar for Dollar, The Endowment Matching Gift Campaign 
Through a significant grant secured by MiraCosta College, every dollar gifted to the MiraCosta 
College Endowment Fund will be matched, up to $600,000.  

Donations of any size will be matched.  

For example, your $1 investment becomes $2 with the matching funds, or your investment of 
$100,000 becomes $200,000.  
Donors may make a gift in any amount to the MiraCosta College Endowment Fund. 
Gifts of $12,500 or more will establish your Named Endowment Fund. The minimum to establish 
a named endowment fund is $25,000. With the matching gift program, your $12,500 will be 
matched and double to $25,000.   

Any Investment in 2023 = Exponential Impact Tomorrow 
Gifts to the matching endowment campaign are estimated to grow 6% annually. As a result, 
after being doubled by the match, the total amount will be invested and is projected to grow by 
nearly 300% within 20 years 

$500 Donated + $500 Matched = $1,000 Invested in 2023 

Tomorrow: Your investment is estimated to = $3,310 in 2043   

  = $115 distributed per year, into perpetuity, for students and campus programs 

$500 donation in 2023     $3,310 investment tomorrow 

       $115 per year, for generations to follow 

 

$12,500 Donated + $12,500 Matched = $25,000 Invested in 2023 

Tomorrow: Your investment is estimated to = $82,755 in 2043 

= $2,900 distributed per year, into perpetuity, for student and campus support 

$12,500 donation in 2023         $82,755 investment tomorrow 

$2,900 per year, for generations to follow 

Ways to Give  
• With a credit card, use the online donation form  
• Mail a check  

MiraCosta College Foundation 
1 Barnard Dr. MS7 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

• Transfer a gift of stock  
Email foundation@miracosta.edu or call 760.757.2121 x 6940 

Thank you for making a legacy gift to support tomorrow’s students! 
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August _8?_ 2023 Email to Founda�on Board from Board President 
 
[Subject:] Email from Dave McGuigan, Board President 
 
[Message Body:]  Founda�on Board, 
 
As we kick off the new fiscal year, I am excited to announce that we have not one but *two* matching 
gi� opportuni�es. The Founda�on Execu�ve Commitee and I would like to invite each of our Board 
Members to par�cipate in one or both opportuni�es by making a personal contribu�on and spreading 
the word. Our goal is 100% board par�cipa�on by September 30, 2023 to either “Give for Today” or 
“Give for Tomorrow” in order to reach our goal of raising $10,000 for the Resilience Fund and $120,000 
for the Endowment Matching Gi� Campaign – both of which will then be doubled by matching gi�s! 
 

• Give For Today 

The MiraCosta College Resilience Fund: Helping Students Stay the Course 

Summary of Need:  

Nearly 50% of MiraCosta College students need support, and financial aid is not enough. 
Through no fault of their own, students will inevitably face emergencies – from food to housing 
to transporta�on. A sudden illness, job loss, or family crisis can derail a student’s college career. 
The average student emergency can be overcome with $1,000 per student. Our goal by 
September 30, 2023 is to raise $10,000 through San Diego Gives – which will be matched dollar 
for dollar by the Cushman Foundation – to total $20,000 for student support today. 

To Give: Visit MiraCosta’s San Diego Gives Webpage  

To Spread the Word: Please find the atached Sample Email #1 to share with your friends, family 
and colleagues 
 

• Give for Tomorrow 

The MiraCosta College Endowment Matching Gi� Campaign 

Summary of Need:  

MiraCosta College students rely on financial aid to fund their educa�on and basic living 
expenses, but o�en this is not nearly enough today, let alone tomorrow. With the rising cost of 
educa�on, the needs will con�nue to grow into the future. In 2023, we have an opportunity to 
build an endowment that will support thousands of MiraCosta College students tomorrow – in 
the next genera�on and for years to follow. Tomorrow’s legacy is an endowment funded now.  
Our goal by September 30, 2023 is to raise $120,000 which will be matched dollar for dollar 
through a grant secured by MiraCosta College. (Our 5-year goal is to raise $120,000 each year 
to total $600,000 over 5 years from the community. Dona�ons will be matched dollar for dollar, 
to total $1.2M which will be invested and grow for years to come.) Dona�ons of any size will be 
matched. Janice Kurth has generously made the first gi� of $10,000 to this campaign, and I hope 
others will join her ... thank you Janice! 

To Give: Donate Online – Case Summary 

To Spread the Word: Please find the atached Sample Email #2 to share with your friends, family 
and colleagues 

 
We will share informa�on about both of these opportuni�es at our upcoming August board mee�ng. I 
am honored to serve on the MiraCosta College Founda�on Board with each of you. Thank you for 
suppor�ng our students and campus community in countless ways. 
 
Dave McGuigan 
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Board President 
PS – if you’d like to spread the word about both opportunities, please see Sample Email #3 

 
Sample Emails 1 and 2 and 3 (both asks) 

**** 

1 [Subject] The MiraCosta College Resilience Fund: Helping Students Stay the Course 
 
[Message Body:] Dear ____ 
 
As a MiraCosta College Founda�on Board member, I am wri�ng to ask that you join me in suppor�ng the 
hardworking and resilient students through a contribu�on to the MiraCosta College Resilience Fund for 
our San Diego Gives campaign. 
 
Nearly 50% of MiraCosta College students need support, and financial aid is not enough to ensure 
student success. Through no fault of their own, students will inevitably face emergencies – from food to 
housing to transporta�on. A sudden illness, job loss, or family crisis can derail a student’s college career. 
The average student emergency can be overcome with $1,000 per student. 
 
In this academic year 2023/24, students face the increased cost of living expenses and growing need for 
workforce development in their field of study, which limits their ability to work addi�onal hours or 
second jobs. [note could remove this para to shorten] 
 
I have made a personal gi� to the MiraCosta College Resilience Fund, and I hope you will too.  
 
Now through September 7, every dollar you donate to MiraCosta College through our San Diego Gives 
campaign will be matched dollar for dollar, up to $10,000, by Cushman Founda�on. 
 
If you can, please give today! 
 
Together, we can support students on their path to success. For that, I can’t thank you enough. 
 
[Board member name] 
 
**** 

2 [Subject] Leave a Legacy: The MiraCosta College Endowment Matching Gi� Campaign 
 
[Message Body:] Dear ____ 
 
As a MiraCosta College Founda�on Board member, I am wri�ng to ask that you join me in suppor�ng 
thousands of MiraCosta College students in the next genera�on – and for years to follow.  
 
Nearly 50% of MiraCosta College students this year will rely on financial aid to fund their educa�on and 
basic living expenses. This is not nearly enough today, let alone tomorrow. With the rising cost of 
educa�on, the needs will con�nue to grow into the future.  
 
In 2023, we have a unique opportunity to build an endowment that will support thousands of MiraCosta 
College students tomorrow – in the next genera�on and for years to follow.  
 
Now through September 30, every dollar you donate to the MiraCosta College Matching Gi� Campaign 
will be matched dollar for dollar up to $120,000. Your doubled dona�on will be invested and grow with 
the market for years to come. For example, your $500 investment becomes $1,000 with the matching 
funds. 
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Why invest today, for tomorrow? Gi�s to this campaign are es�mated to grow 6% annually. As a result, 
a�er being doubled by the match, the total amount will be invested and is projected to grow by nearly 
300% within 20 years. As an example, your $500 dona�on today will be doubled to make a $1,000 
investment in 2023, which is expected to grow to $3,310 in 2043.  
 
Tomorrow’s legacy is an endowment funded now. I have made a personal gi� to the MiraCosta College 
Endowment Matching Gi� Campaign, and I hope you will too.  
 
If you can, please give today! 
 
I am happy to talk further and look forward to doubling our impact together. Together, we can leave a 
legacy for years to follow.  
 
[Board Member Name] 
 
**** 

3 [Subject] Give for Today or Give for Tomorrow – MiraCosta College Student Support  
 
[Message Body:] Dear ______ 
 
As a MiraCosta College Founda�on Board member, I am wri�ng to ask that you join me in suppor�ng our 
hardworking and resilient MiraCosta College students by Giving for Today or Giving for Tomorrow – or 
both! 
 
Nearly 50% of MiraCosta College students need support, and financial aid is not enough to ensure 
student success today, let alone tomorrow. Through no fault of their own, students will inevitably face 
emergencies – from food to housing to transporta�on. With the rising cost of educa�on, the needs will 
con�nue to grow into the future. 
 
Give For Today 
MiraCosta College Resilience Fund: Helping Students Stay the Course 
Through our San Diego Gives campaign, every dollar donated to the MiraCosta College Resilience Fund 
will be matched dollar for dollar, up to $10,000 through September 7. Your dona�on of any size provides 
direct support to students, helping a student stay in school and succeed.  
 
Give for Tomorrow 
The MiraCosta College Endowment Matching Gi� Campaign 
In 2023, we have a unique opportunity to build an endowment that will support thousands of MiraCosta 
College students tomorrow – in the next genera�on and for years to follow. Now through September 30, 
every dollar you donate will be matched dollar for dollar up to $120,000. Your doubled dona�on will be 
invested and grow with the market for years to come. 

Why invest today, for tomorrow? Gi�s to this campaign are es�mated to grow 6% annually. As a result, 
a�er being doubled by the match, the total amount will be invested and is projected to grow by nearly 
300% within 20 years.  

As an example, your $500 dona�on today will be doubled to make a $1,000 investment in 2023, which is 
expected to grow to $3,310 in 2043.  
 
Thank you for considering a gi�!  
I have made a personal gi�, and I hope you will too. If you can, please give today! I am happy to talk 
further and look forward to doubling our impact together. Together, we can support student success for 
years to follow.  
 
[Board Member Name] 
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Chemistry & Biotechnology Building
Fall 2024

Chemistry & Biotechnology Building
Fall 2024
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24,000 Square Feet
STEM Quad & Plaza
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During a three month span,
2,255 STEM job postings

in North County alone.

MiraCosta College 
meets

local demand
in STEM
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Building for the Future
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Yesenia Leon is a
MiraCosta College

biomanufacturing graduate

She is now employed
at Genetech

2023.08.15 MCC Foundation Board Meeting Agenda Packet Page 44 of 76



Over 91% of our graduates
go directly into the industry
Over 91% of our graduates
go directly into the industry
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Be remembered for
generations to come.
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Together, we can transform lives.
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________________, 2023 
 
 
The Board of Directors 
MiraCosta College Foundation  
Oceanside, California 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of MiraCosta College Foundation (the Foundation) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated ____________, 2023. Professional 
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 
 
As communicated in our letter dated June 3, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, 
is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities. 
 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Foundation solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 
 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you.  
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 
 
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
 
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the 
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  
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Significant Risks Identified  
 
As stated in our auditor’s report, professional standards require us to design our audit to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error. In 
designing our audit procedures, professional standards require us to evaluate the financial statements and 
assess the risk that a material misstatement could occur. Areas that are potentially more susceptible to 
misstatements, and thereby require special audit considerations, are designated as “significant risks”. We have 
identified the following as significant risks. 
 

Management Override of Controls – Professional standards require auditors to address the possibility of 
management overriding controls. Accordingly, we identified as a significant risk that management of the 
Foundation may have the ability to override controls that the Foundation has implemented. Management 
may override the Foundation’s controls in order to modify the financial records with the intent of 
manipulating the financial statements to overstate the Foundation’s financial performance or with the 
intent of concealing fraudulent transactions. 
 
Revenue Recognition – We identified revenue recognition as a significant risk due to financial and 
operational incentives for the Foundation to overstate revenues. 
 
Net Asset Classification – We identified the classification of net assets as a significant risk due to the risk of 
potential misclassification of restricted donations for purposes of benefiting the Foundation’s operations. 

 
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the Foundation is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. As 
discussed in Note 1, the Foundation has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification Topic 958, Presentation and Disclosures by Non-Profit Entities for Contributed 
Nonfinancial Assets during year ending June 30, 2022. No matters have come to our attention that would 
require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions or (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 
Significant Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience 
about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility 
that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. No such 
significant accounting estimates were identified. 
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Financial Statement Disclosures  
 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to financial statement users. There were no financial statement disclosures that we consider to 
be particularly sensitive or involve significant judgement. 
 
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the 
audit. 
 
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate 
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also 
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of 
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Uncorrected 
misstatements or matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period 
financial statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial 
to the financial statements currently under audit. There were no uncorrected or corrected misstatements 
identified as a result of our audit procedures. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
which could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose 
during the course of the audit. 
 
Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report  
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect 
the form and content of our auditor’s report. Foundation management identified certain funds that were 
previously presented as net assets with donor restrictions, which based on review of the gift agreement were 
unrestricted in nature. Accordingly, a correction of an error was identified in the independent auditor’s 
report to properly account for those funds in the net assets without donor restriction classification. 
 
Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated ____________, 2023. 
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Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
 
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with the Foundation, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or 
transactions that occurred during the year, business conditions affecting the Foundation, and business plans and 
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a 
condition to our retention as the Foundation’s auditors. 
 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of the 
Foundation and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California  
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June XX, 2023 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
MiraCosta College Foundation  
Oceanside, California 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of MiraCosta College Foundation 
(the Foundation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Foundation’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses and, therefore, 
material weaknesses may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Foundation’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable 
as defined as follows: 
 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less 
than likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 
 
We consider the following deficiencies in the Foundation’s internal control to be a material weakness: 
 
Restatement – Classification of Net Assets  
 
Foundation management reviewed the classification of donor restricted funds and related pledge receivable. As 
a result of the review of the balances and the gift agreement and related documentation, management 
determined that the donor’s intent of the gift was unrestricted. Therefore, all activity relating to this donor 
should be reported in the financial statements as without donor restriction. The Foundation’s beginning net 
assets with donor restriction have been restated to reflect this reclassification. 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, 
others within the Foundation, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California  
June XX, 2023 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
The Board of Directors 
MiraCosta College Foundation 
Oceanside, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of MiraCosta College Foundation (the Foundation) 
(a California nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Correction of Error 
 
As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, certain errors resulting in the incorrect classification 
of net asset restrictions as of June 30, 2021, were discovered by management of the Foundation during 
the current year. Accordingly, amounts reported for net assets have been restated in the 2021 financial 
statements now presented, and an adjustment has been made to net asset restrictions as of June 30, 
2021, to correct the error. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair  
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presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be 
issued. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities of the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
______________, 2023 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,898,764$      
Prepaid and Other Assets 10,145              
Investments 15,704,005      
Investments related to deferred gifts 724,537            
Accounts receivable 58,105              
Unconditional promises to give, net 417,734            
Donated artwork held for sale 426,799            

Total current assets 19,240,089      

Noncurrent assets
Beneficial interest in assets held by the Foundation

for California Community Colleges 762,750            
Cash surrender value of life insurance 28,842              
Unconditional promises to give, net 227,937

Total noncurrent assets 1,019,529         

Total assets 20,259,618$    

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 24,308$            
Due to MiraCosta Community College District 135,886

Total liabilities 160,194            

Net assets
Without donor restrictions

Undesignated 2,080,369         
Board designated 654,968            

Total without donor restrictions 2,735,337         

With donor restrictions 17,364,087      

Total net assets 20,099,424      

Total liabilities and net assets 20,259,618$    
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Public Support and Revenues
Contributions, gifts, and grants 113,771$          1,392,772$      1,506,543$      
Contributions - assets held for sale 9,236                -                         9,236                
Contributions - gift in kind -                         73,025              73,025              
Contributions - District donated gift in kind 135,828 215,480            351,308            
Management fees 209,020            (209,020)           -                         
Net assets released from restrictions 1,114,265         (1,114,265)       -                         

Total public support and revenues 1,582,120         357,992            1,940,112         

Expenses
Program 1,315,500         -                         1,315,500         
Management and general 760,741            -                         760,741            

Total expenses 2,076,241         -                         2,076,241         

Other Income
Unrealized loss on investments (195,217)           (2,459,593)       (2,654,810)       
Change in value of deferred gifts -                         81,823              81,823              
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance -                         467 467                    
Change in value of beneficial interest

in assets held by Foundation for
California Community Colleges -                         (119,560)           (119,560)           

Interest and dividends, net 3,137                -                         3,137                

Total other income (192,080)           (2,496,863)       (2,688,943)       

Change in Net Assets (686,201)           (2,138,871)       (2,825,072)       

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as Restated 3,421,538 19,502,958 22,924,496      

Net Assets, End of Year 2,735,337$      17,364,087$    20,099,424$    
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

Management
Program and General Total

Foundation staff salaries and benefits 91,185$            27,098$            118,283$        
Donated salaries and benefits 208,200            132,466            340,666          
Donated facility use 7,280                3,362                10,642            
Gift in kind 73,025 -                         73,025            
Supplies 67,578              2,437                70,015            
Other services 64,768 30,598 95,366            
Travel, conferences, training 22,024 3,067 25,091            
Dues and membership 12,040 451 12,491            
Insurance -                         13,411 13,411            
Utilites and custodial 224 -                         224                  
Contract services 110,134 39,817 149,951          
Audit -                         12,000 12,000            
Advertising & postage 45,128 2,237 47,365            
Direct student aid 85,920 -                         85,920            
Scholarships 527,994 -                         527,994          
Bad debt expense (loss of pledge) -                         493,797 493,797          

Total 1,315,500$      760,741$          2,076,241$    
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
Operating Activities

Change in net assets (2,825,072)$     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

flows from operating activities
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes (111,898)           
Net unrealized loss on investments 2,654,810         
Distribution from beneficial interest in assets held by

the Foundation for California Community Colleges 38,800              
Change in value of beneficial interest in assets held by

the Foundation for California Community Colleges 119,560            
Change in value of deferred gifts (81,823)             
Cash surrender value of life insurance (467)                  

Change in assets and liabilities
Prepaid and other assets (10,145)             
Accounts receivable (57,922)             
Unconditional promises to give 628,378            
Donated artwork held for sale (9,236)               
Accounts payable 19,046              
Due to Miracosta Community College District 64,284              

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 428,315            

Investing Activities
Withdrawal from endowment 505,852            
Purchase of investments (431,881)           

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 73,971              

Financing Activities
Collections of contributions restricted for long-term purposes 111,898            

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 614,184            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,284,580         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 1,898,764$      
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 1 -  Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization 
 
The MiraCosta College Foundation (the Foundation) is a non-profit public benefit corporation organized under 
the Non-profit Public Benefit Corporation Law of the State of California. The Foundation was incorporated on 
April 26, 1967, as an independent foundation established under the laws of the State of California. The purpose 
of the Foundation is to promote the benefits of the MiraCosta College (the College) and to assist in securing, 
managing and distributing resources for students in the community. The members of the Foundation's Board of 
Directors are composed of members from the local community. Advisors to the Board include the College 
President, College management staff, a member of the Board of Trustees, Senate Presidents and Associated 
Student Body President. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The Foundation and the District are financially interrelated organizations as defined by Transfers of Assets to a 
Nonprofit or Charitable Trust that Holds Contributions for Others, issued by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB). The Foundation reflects contributions received for the benefit of the District as revenue in its 
financial statements. The expenses related to these contributions are accounted for under program and 
supporting services. 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The FASB has established 
the Accounting Standards of Codification (ASC) as the source of authoritative accounting principles to be applied 
in the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP. The financial statements include the 
accounts maintained by and directly under the control of the Foundation. In addition, the Foundation is required 
to present a statement of cash flows. The Foundation does not use fund accounting. 
 
Net Asset Accounting 
 
Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for general use and not subject to donor or 
grantor restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions represents all resources over which the Board of 
Directors has discretionary control for use in operating the Foundation. In addition, the Foundation's Board 
has also designated various balances of net assets without donor restrictions for certain uses, as described 
in Note 12. 
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are contributions and endowment investment earnings 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature that may 
or will be met, either by actions of the Foundation and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Revenue and Revenue Recognition 
 
The Foundation recognizes contributions, including unconditional promises to give, as revenues in the period 
the contribution or unconditional promise is received. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the time of the gift. 
 
Contributions are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that 
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction 
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are released from restrictions. 
When a donor's restriction is met within the same year as the donation, the donation is reported as net assets 
without donor restrictions. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities 
are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in 
the change in net assets. Investment income (interest and dividends) is included in the change in net assets from 
operations unless the gain or loss is restricted by donor or law. 
 
Concentrations 
 
The Foundation maintains cash and investment balances at banks in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) and Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) limits. Deposit concentration risk is 
managed by placing cash and investment balances with financial institutions believed by the Foundation to be 
creditworthy. Management believes credit risk is limited. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principle requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the 
date of financial statements and the reported amounts of and revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material. 
 
Donated Services and Goods and In-Kind Contributions 
 
Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or require 
specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the 
Foundation. In addition, a number of volunteers have donated time to the Foundation's fundraising campaigns, 
which have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements because the recognition criteria were 
not met. Donated salaries, benefits and facilities received from the District per the terms of the Master 
Agreement, are recorded as contributions at the estimated fair value that the Foundation would have otherwise 
paid for the same service. The value of those contributed items is recognized as both revenue and expense to 
the Foundation. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as all checking and money market accounts with an original maturity of 
90 days or less. 
 
Pledges Receivable 
 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Foundation that is, in substance, 
unconditional. When a restriction expires, donor-restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without 
donor restrictions. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are 
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years 
are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their future cash flows. The discounts on 
those amounts are computed using risk-adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are 
received. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. Conditional promises to give are not 
included as support until the conditions are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the time of the gift. At June 30, 2022, unconditional promises to give 
have been recorded in the financial statements in the amount of $645,671, net of unamortized discount. 
 
The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible unconditional promises receivable. The 
allowance is based on prior years' experience and management's analysis of specific promises made. At June 30, 
2022, management has set up an allowance for uncollectible promise to give in the amount of $500,000. 
 
Beneficial Interest in Assets held by Community Foundation 
 
During 2008, the Foundation established an endowment fund that is perpetual in nature (the Fund) under a 
community foundation's (the CF) Osher Endowment Scholarship program and named the Foundation as a 
beneficiary. Variance power was granted to the CF which allows the CF to modify any condition or restriction on 
its distributions for any specified charitable purpose or to any specified organization if, in the sole judgment of 
the CF's Board of Directors, such restriction or condition becomes unnecessary, incapable of fulfillment, or 
inconsistent with the charitable needs of the community. The Fund is held and invested by the CF for the 
Foundation's benefit and is reported at fair value in the statement of financial position, with distributions and 
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of activities. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation is a charitable, not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization qualified under provisions of 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and corresponding California provisions. Accordingly, no 
provision for income taxes has been provided in the financial statements. The Foundation has also been 
classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for 
deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(A)(vi). The Foundation annually files information returns, 
Forms 990, 199, and RRF-1, with the appropriate agencies. There was no unrelated business activity income. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
The Foundation has adopted FASB ASC Topic 740 that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions 
taken or expected to be taken on a tax return and provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position 
can be recognized in the financial statements only if, based on its merits, the position is more likely than not to 
be sustained on audit by the taxing authorities. Management believes that all tax positions taken to date are 
highly certain, and, accordingly, no accounting adjustment has been made to the financial statements. 
 
Accounts Payable and Current Liabilities 
 
Accounts payable balance consists of expenditures incurred prior to fiscal year end, but not yet paid. Due to 
MiraCosta Community College District (the District) balance consists of payroll processed by the District on 
behalf of the Foundation and other miscellaneous expenditures owed to the District. 
 
Allocation of Functional Expenses 
 
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of 
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited. The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more 
than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is 
consistently applied. 
 
Management Fee 
 
Endowments received by the Foundation are subject to a 1.5% endowment management fee. The fee is 
assessed annually at 1.5% of the endowment fund balance before distribution. In addition, the Foundation 
assesses a 5% gift fee on all planned gifts, at the time of receipt. Revenues received from management fees are 
used by the Foundation to cultivate and solicit new gifts, as well as pay for administrative overhead related to 
processing gifts and endowments. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As of July 1, 2021, the Foundation adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2020-07, Not-
for- Profit Entities (Topic 958) Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial 
Assets. The standard requires enhanced presentation and disclosure of contributed nonfinancial assets. 
Management has adopted the amendments of this update on a retrospective basis, because it provides 
increased and more transparent disclosure around contributed nonfinancial assets. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 2 -  Liquidity and Availability 
 
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,898,764$      
Board reserves 50,000              
Accounts receivable 58,105              

2,006,869$      

 
Liquidity Management 
 
To manage liquidity, the Foundation structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, 
liabilities and other obligations become due. To ensure the stability of its mission, programs, employment, and 
ongoing operations, the Foundation maintains Board-Designated Operating Reserves. Quarterly, the Vice 
President, Institutional Advancement and the Finance Committee chair will determine if funds need to be 
transferred from the Operations Reserve Account (Vanguard) into local operating accounts to meet upcoming 
cash needs. The assets apportioned to the Reserve Account (Portfolio) are to be invested with the objective of 
security of principal and short-term liquidity.  
 
 
Note 3 -  Unconditional Promises to Give 
 
The Foundation's unconditional promises to give consisted of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 
Unconditional promises to give before unamortized 

discount and allowance for doubtful accounts 1,147,734$      
Less discount to net present value (2,063)
Less allowance for uncollectible promises to give (500,000)           

Net Unconditional Promises to Give 645,671$          

 
Unconditional promises to give can be classified as without, or with donor restriction. Management has 
determined that all amounts are deemed collectible at June 30, 2022.  
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
The Foundation has been promised unconditional promises to give, which were classified as follows at 
June 30, 2022: 

Deferred Action
Annual for Childhood Hatoff
Fund Arrivals (DACA) Endowment

Amounts due in
Due within one year 62,734$            35,000$            15,000$            
Due within one to five years -                         25,000              200,000            

62,734 60,000 215,000

Less discount to net present value -                         (62)                     (1,988)               
Less allowance for uncollectible 

promises to give -                         -                         -                         

Total 62,734$            59,938$            213,012$          

 

Amounts due in
Due within one year
Due within one to five years

Less discount to net present value
Less allowance for uncollectible 

promises to give

Total

Karetas Promise
Family Program Total

5,000$              300,000$          417,734$          
5,000                500,000            730,000            

10,000 800,000 1,147,734

(13)                     -                         (2,063)

-                         (500,000)           (500,000)           

9,987$              300,000$          645,671$          

 
The discount rate used was 0.25% for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
 
Note 4 -  Donated Artwork Held For Sale 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Foundation received various works of art, which based on donor 
stipulations can be sold for the benefit of the Foundation’s mission. The works of art were valued using 
independent appraisals. As of June 30, 2022, the balance of artwork held for sale was $426,799. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 5 -  Investments 
 
Investments are stated at fair value and are summarized as of June 30, 2022: 
 
Investments

Investments 15,704,005$    
Deferred gifts 724,537            
Beneficial interest in assets held by the 

Foundation for California Community Colleges 762,750            

Total investments 17,191,292$    

 
The investment return consists of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Interest and dividends 42,473$            -$                       42,473$            
Unrealized loss on investments (195,217)           (2,459,593)       (2,654,810)       

Total investment loss (152,744)           (2,459,593)       (2,612,337)       

Investment fees (39,336)             -                         (39,336)             

Total investment loss, net of fees (192,080)$        (2,459,593)$     (2,651,673)$     

 
 
Note 6 -  Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures 
 
Certain assets are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, 
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to 
the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about 
risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the 
best information available.  
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows: 
 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be accessed 
at the measurement date. 
 
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than 
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs. 
 
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are developed using the 
best information available in the circumstances. 

 
The fair value of the beneficial interest in assets held by the Foundation for California Community Colleges is 
based on the fair value of fund investments as reported by the Foundation. These are considered to be level 3 
measurements.  
 
Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 
 
The following table presents the balances of the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 
2022. The Foundation did not have any liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2022. 
The Foundation has no assets or liabilities recorded at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of June 30, 2022. 
 

Level 1 Level 3 Total

Assets
Equity 11,424,991$    -$                       11,424,991$    
Fixed income 4,279,014         -                         4,279,014         
Deferred gifts -                         724,537            724,537            
Beneficial interest in assets held by the Foundation

 for California Community Colleges -                         762,750            762,750            

Total 15,704,005$    1,487,287$      17,191,292$    

 
 
Note 7 -  Deferred Gifts 
 
The Foundation is the beneficiary of various charitable remainder trusts, administered by the Community 
College League of California and one individual trustor, which provide for the payment of distributions to the 
grantor or other designated beneficiary over the trust's term (generally the designated beneficiary's lifetime). At 
the end of the trust's term, the remaining assets are available to the Foundation. The Foundation recognizes the 
fair value of its interest in the trust at the time the trust is established as a contribution. Fair value is based on 
the present value of the estimated future benefits to be received using discount rates ranging from 5.6% to 
8.4%. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Assets held in the charitable remainder trusts totaled $724,537 at June 30, 2022, and are reported at fair value 
or cost, depending on the nature of the assets in the statement of financial position. The Foundation revalues its 
liability to make distributions to the other designated beneficiaries annually based on mortality tables and other 
applicable factors. The revision of this liability together with the amortization of the discount associated with the 
contribution is reported as changes in the value of deferred gifts in the statement of activities. 
 
 
Note 8 -  Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by the Foundation for California Community Colleges - 

Osher Endowment Scholarship 
 
The Foundation for California Community Colleges (FCCC) has created a permanent endowment fund intended 
to provide scholarship support to California Community College students in perpetuity. The fund began in 
May 2008 with a $25 million lead gift from The Bernard Osher Foundation. The Bernard Osher Foundation will 
provide scholarship matching funds annually to colleges that participate. In order to take advantage of this 
opportunity, the District and its donors have contributed $682,313. As of June 30, 2022, the ending balance of 
the Osher Endowment Scholarship was $762,750. The Foundation receives no additional interest or dividends on 
the balance held at the FCCC and does not participate in the investment management of the funds. All donations 
to the FCCC Osher Endowment Scholarship must remain in the fund permanently and cannot be returned or 
used for other purposes. 
 
 
Note 9 -  Donor Designated Endowments 
 
The Foundation's financial assets consist of various funds established for a variety of purposes. As required by 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), net assets associated with endowments funds, are classified 
and reported based on existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the 
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this 
interpretation, the Foundation retains in perpetuity (a) the original value of gifts donated to permanent 
endowment, (b) plus the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowments, (c) plus accumulation to the 
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the 
time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment funds 
that is not held in perpetuity is classified as net assets with donor restrictions and may be appropriated for 
expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. 
In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to 
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various 
funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the 
possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of 
investments, (6) other resources of the Foundation, and (7) the Foundation's investment policies. 
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters, and Strategies  
 
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies, approved by the Board of Directors, for 
endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its 
endowment funds by preserving the long-term, real purchasing power of assets while providing a relatively 
predictable and growing stream of annual distributions in support of the institution. Endowment assets are 
invested in a well-diversified mix including equity and fixed-income securities, intended to provide an inflation-
protected rate of return satisfying the distribution requirements while protecting the corpus. Investment risk is 
measured in terms of the total endowment fund, not individual endowments. 
 
Spending Policy 
 
The Foundation's Board approved spending policy was created to protect the values of the endowments. An 
endowment spending rate of no more than 5.5% is based on a three-year moving average of current market 
values as of June 30, 2022. This rate is reviewed on an annual basis. 
 
Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2022, is as follows: 
 

Total Net
Without Donor With Donor Endowment 

Restrictions Restrictions Funds

Donor-restricted endowment funds -$                       11,932,055$    11,932,055$    
Board-designated endowment funds 604,968            -                         604,968            

Total 604,968$          11,932,055$    12,537,023$    

 
Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2022, are as follows: 
 

Total Net
Without Donor With Donor Endowment 

Restrictions Restrictions Funds

Balance at June 30, 2021, as restated 757,456$          15,008,534$    15,765,990$    
Contributions -                         111,898            111,898            
Change in value of investments (117,174)           (2,529,929)       (2,647,103)       
Amounts appropriated for expenditures (35,314)             (658,448)           (693,762)           

Balance at June 30, 2022 604,968$          11,932,055$    12,537,023$    
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 10 -  Restrictions of Net Asset Balances 
 
Donor-restricted net assets with time and/or purpose restrictions consist of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 
Deferred gifts and cash surrender value of life insurance 753,379$          
Campus Activity 2,665,183         
Donor restricted endowments 1,317,996         
Foundation scholarships 1,331,157         

Total net assets with time/purpose restriction 6,067,715$      

 
Donor-restricted net assets with perpetual restrictions consist of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 
Scholarship endowments 4,749,449$      
Beneficial interest in assets held by the Foundation

for California Community Colleges 682,313            
General endowments 5,864,610         

Total net assets with perpetual restriction 11,296,372$    

 
 
Note 11 -  Net Assets Released from Restrictions 
 
The sources of net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted 
purposes were as listed below at June 30, 2022: 
 

Scholarships and grants 613,914$          
Other program services 211,846            
Donated salaries and facility use 215,480            
Gift in Kind 73,025              

Total 1,114,265$      

 
 
Note 12 -  Board Designated Net Assets 
 
Net assets without donor restrictions that have been Board designated consist of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 

Board-designated endowment funds 604,968$          
General Reserves 50,000              

Total 654,968$          
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MiraCosta College Foundation  
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 13 -  Transactions with Related Entities 
 
There are certain administrative costs of the Foundation that are paid by the District in accordance with a 
Memorandum of Understanding between the District and the Foundation. The District believes that so long as 
the Foundation continues to adequately perform funds management and fundraising assistance to the District, 
the District's best interests are served by continuing to support the Foundation's operations by providing 
personnel, certain facilities, and administrative services including the services of the District's Vice President, 
Institutional Advancement. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Foundation received $340,666 in donated salaries and benefits and 
$10,642 in donated facilities from the District in alignment with the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
 
Note 14 -  Restatement 
 
When reviewing the individual funds within the net assets, the Foundation became aware of funds that were 
improperly classified upon recognition. The balance was adjusted in the current year, restating the beginning net 
assets to properly account for these funds in the correct classification. There was no effect on the change in net 
assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, as a result of the restatement. The effect on the Foundation’s 
statement of activities as of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 
 

As Previously
Reported Adjustment As Adjusted

Net Assets, End of the Year
Net assets without donor restrictions 2,352,247$      1,069,291$      3,421,538$      
Net assets with donor restrictions 20,572,249      (1,069,291)       19,502,958      

22,924,496$    -$                       22,924,496$    

 
 
Note 15 -  Subsequent Events 
 
The Foundation’s management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements from June 30, 2022 through ___________, 2023, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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  Updated 8/2/2023 
 

 

Meeting and Event Calendar: July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024  
 
Quarterly Board Meetings      Governance and Nominations 
(Location Varies – See Calendar Invite)    (3333 Manchester Blvd, Encinitas, CA 92007) 

3:00 – 5:00 p.m. Tuesday August 15, 2023    2:00 – 3:00 p.m. Tuesday, July 25, 2023 

3:00 – 5:00 p.m.  Tuesday, November 14, 2023  2:00 – 3:00 p.m. Tuesday, October 24, 2023 

3:00 – 5:00 p.m.  Tuesday, February 27, 2024  2:00 – 3:00 p.m. Tuesday, February 6, 2024 

3:00 – 5:00 p.m.  Tuesday, May 7, 2024   2:00 – 3:00 p.m. Tuesday, April 16, 2024 

 
  
Finance Committee Meetings             Executive Committee Meetings 

    (3333 Manchester Blvd, Encinitas, CA 92007)                         (3333 Manchester Blvd, Encinitas, CA 92007) 
 

1:00 – 2:30 p.m. Tuesday, August 1, 2023   3 – 4 p.m. Tuesday, August 1, 2023 

1:00 – 2:30 p.m. Tuesday, October 31, 2023   3 – 4 p.m. Tuesday, October 31, 2023 

1:00 – 2:30 p.m. Tuesday, February 13, 2024  3 – 4 p.m. Tuesday, February 13, 2024 

1:00 – 2:30 p.m. Tuesday, April 23, 2024    3 – 4 p.m. Tuesday, April 23, 2024 
 
 

 
Comprehensive Campaign Committee Meetings  Audit Committee Meetings 

          (Zoom: https://miracosta-edu.zoom.us/j/85780354889)   (3333 Manchester Blvd, Encinitas, CA 92007) 
           

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, July 18, 2023   TBD Spring 2024 

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, August 29, 2023 

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, September 26, 2023  Community Leaders Breakfast 

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, November 7, 2023  7 – 9 a.m. Friday, October 20, 2023  

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, January 30, 2024    

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, February 20, 2024  Board Social & Holiday Party 

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, March 26, 2024   To Be Determined 

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, April 30, 2024    

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 28, 2024 

1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Tuesday, June 25, 2024 
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Other Foundation Events FY23-24 
Biotech Alumnight: September 15, 2023; 5:30 – 7:30 p.m. @ Oceanside Campus (1 Barnard Dr.) 

President’s Circle Event: December 6, 2023; 5:30 – 9:00 p.m. @ Oceanside Campus (1 Barnard Dr.) 

Scholarship Celebration: February 23, 2024; 5:00 – 6:30 p.m. @ Oceanside Campus (1 Barnard Dr.) 

Spring Donor Appreciation Event: March 15, 2024; 5:30 – 9:00 p.m. @ Oceanside Campus (1 Barnard Dr.) 

Athletics Alumni Event: April 20, 2024; 5:30 – 7:30 p.m. @ Oceanside Campus (1 Barnard Dr.) 

MiraCosta College Commencement: May 24, 2024 @ Oceanside Campus (1 Barnard Dr.) 

 

FY 23/24 MiraCosta College Foundation Committee Members 
 
Committee Chair Members 
Audit  
(Standing) 

Tim Snodgrass Cindy Musser 
Kimberly Troutman 
OPEN 
OPEN 

Comprehensive Campaign 
(Ad hoc) 

Dave McGuigan Bruce Bandemer 
Hema Crockett 
Jimmy Figueroa 
Janice Kurth 
Karen Pearson 
Tim Snodgrass 
Kimberly Troutman 

Executive 
(Standing) 

Dave McGuigan Alec Babiarz 
Bruce Bandemer 
Janice Kurth 
Val Saadat 
Timothy Snodgrass 
Denise Stillinger 

Finance 
(Standing) 

Bruce Bandemer Jimmy Figueroa 
Cindy Musser 
Sharon Wiback 
OPEN 
OPEN 
OPEN 

Innovation Grants & Scholarships 
(Ad hoc) 

Val Saadat Hap L’Heureux 
Karen Pearson 
Kimberly Troutman 
Sharon Wiback 

Nominations & Governance 
(Standing) 

Denise Stillinger Alec Babiarz 
Hema Crockett 
Hap L’Heureux 
Val Saadat 
Sudershan Shaunak 
Sharon Wiback 
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